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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Edmonton, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

BRANCHomCE 
108 WEST THIRD STREET 

P.O. BOX 778 
TOMPKINSVILLE, K1!NTUCKY 41167 

TELEPHONE 270.487-6515 

FAX 270.487-6515 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Edmonton, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Edmonton, 
Kentucky's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the deSign, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to ·fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting poliCies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Edmonton, Kentucky 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City 
of Edmonton, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

RequIred SupplementJlry Infotmlltlon 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis (pages 8 - 19), budgetary comparison information (pages 63 -
65), and pension information (page 66 - 67) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Infotmllflon 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opInions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Edmonton, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The combining fund 
financial statements and component unit financial statements are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining fund financial statements and component unit financial statements are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconCiling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial statements and component 
unit financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Audff/ng Standards 

In accordance with Government Audnlng StandsrdB, we have also issued our report dated October 25, 
2016, on our consideration of the City of Edmonton, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Edmonton, Kentucky 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards· Concluded 

provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
City of Edmonton, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

October 25,2016 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

The management of the City of Edmonton presents this narrative to help our readers review the 
accompanying annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016. We have prepared this 
overview and analysis of the City's financial activities to add additional information to the financial 
schedules and the note disclosures. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Assets and Liabilities 

• As of June 30,2016, the City's assets exceeded liabilities by $14,394,180. Total net position is 
comprised of the following: 
1. Net position of $11,307,386 is invested in property and equipment, net of accumulated 

depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction of 
capital assets. 

2. Net position of $1,106,471 is restricted to specific projects by laws, regulations, contractual 
agreements, or debt service. 

3. Unrestricted net position of $1,980,323 represents the portion available to maintain the 
City's continuing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• Unrestricted cash balances as of June 30, 2016, were $3,743,379, and current liabilities 
payable from unrestricted resources were $762,105. 

• Net position increased by $454,859. 

• Fund balances (a measure of current financial resources) in the governmental funds increased 
$21,228 to a total of $1,234,198. 

• Net position in the proprietary funds increased $385,790 to a total of $11,818,441. 

Revenues and Expenditures 

• Revenues in governmental funds were $1,319,881. This amount includes property taxes, 
occupational licenses and taxes, insurance premiums tax, franchise fees, parks and recreation 
income, and other items. 

• Expenditures in the governmental fund tYpe were $1,358,579. This includes amounts for 
general government, public safety (police, fire, and E911), street department, parks and 
recreation, capital outlay, and debt service. 

• Other financing sources and uses in the governmental fund type were $59,926. This amount 
includes interest income, loan proceeds, grant proceeds, and other items. 

• Revenues from proprietary fund types totaled $2,724,284. This includes charges for utility 
services (water, sewer, and natural gas). 

• Expenses in the proprietary fund types totaled $2,568,910. This includes amounts for salaries 
and wages, utility services purchased (water and natural gas), depreciation, and other items. 

• Non-operating revenues and expenses netted $230,416 of revenue. This amount includes 
grant income, interest income, bond interest expense, and other income and expense items. 

TP&C Page 8 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management's discussion and analysis are intended to introduce the CitYs basic financial statements. 
Basic financial statements include three major sections: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information to provide additional information that our readers can use to analyze our 
finances. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide our readers with an overview of the 
City's finances, presenting all funds in a more simplified format. This section is similar to financial 
reporting used by commercial entities. 

The statement of net position presents information on all the CitYs assets and liabilities, including long­
term debt and capital assets in the governmental funds. The difference between assets and liabilities is 
reported as net position. Evaluation of the overall economic health of the City would extend to other 
nonfinancial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of City infrastructure in 
addition to the financial information provided in this report. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of 
when cash is received or paid. Therefore, some revenues and expenses included in this statement 
may reflect cash flows that actually occur in future periods. An important purpose of the design of the 
statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the CitYs distinct activities or functions on 
revenues provided by the City's taxpayers. 

Government-wide statements are separated into two major categories: 1) governmental activities that 
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and 2) bUSiness-type activities that 
are supported with user fees and charges. Governmental activities include administrative functions, 
streets, public safety (police, fire, and E911), parks and recreation, and special revenue funds 
(municipal road aid and LGEA). BUSiness-type activities include utility services for water, sewer, and 
natural gas. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary 
government), but also the Edmonton-Metcalfe Industrial Development Authority. Financial information 
for this component unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary 
government itself. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Funds are used in governmental accounting to separate resources that are deSignated for specific 
programs or activities. The City of Edmonton, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to demonstrate compliance with the laws, regulations, and contractual agreements that 
establish the authority for the CitYs programs and services. Governments use three types of funds: 
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. The City does not have any fiduciary funds, but does 
use the governmental and proprietary fund types. 

Governmental funds are used to account for the CitYs basic services, the same services that are 
included in the governmental activities on the government-wide statements. However, the information 
in the fund statements is measured differently. Governmental funds focus on current financial 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONCLUDED 

Fund Financial Statements - Concluded 

resources rather than economic resources. Therefore, the statements include the short-term resources 
such as cash, investments, and receivables that will be collected in the 'next few months, and liabilities . 
that will be retired with these monies. This information is important for assessing the City's current 
financial resources. 

The reconciliation in the fund statements explains the difference between the governmental funds in the 
fund statements and the governmental activities found in the government-wide financial statements. 
This reconciliation will explain the adjustments necessary to compare the long-term resources and 
liabilities for the government-wide statements with the current picture presented in the fund statements. 

Edmonton uses the following governmental funds: 

• General Fund 
• Municipal Road Aid Fund 
• LGEA 

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which 
the City charges customers a fee. There are two kinds of proprietary funds. These are enterprise 
funds and internal service funds. The City does not have internal service funds but does use enterprise 
funds. Enterprise funds essentially encompass the same functions reported as bUSiness-type activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. Services such as water, sewer, and natural gas utilities 
are provided to customers external to the City organization. 

Proprietary fund statements provide both long-term and short-term financial information consistent with 
the focus provided by the government-wide financial statements but with more detail for major 
enterprise funds. . 

Edmonton uses the following enterprise funds: 

• Water 
• Sewer 
• Natural Gas 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Immediately following the basic financial statements are the notes to the financial statements. Notes 
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information included in the 
financial statements. The notes also provide additional details about the balances and transactions in 
the City's financial statements. 

Other Information 

The remainder of this report consists of two types of supplementary information. Required 
supplementary information must be included to conform with generally accepted accounting principles, 
while other supplementary information is presented to expand the City's financial presentations. 
Management's discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparisons for the major funds, and the 
pension information are required supplementary information included in this report. Other 
supplementary information includes the combining statements for the special revenue funds and the 
component unit statements. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The following two pages summarize, in a condensed format, the net position and results of operations 
of the City, with comparisons to the prior year. 

The first statement offers a snapshot of the assets, liabilities, and net position as of the end of each 
year. Included in the non-current assets are capital assets, reported net of depreciation. The City 
completed a comprehensive capital asset inventory and compiled the information into a database to 
help manage the City's investment in these valuable resources. 

Of the City's net position in the governmental-type activities, $161,937 is restricted to comply with 
provisions of various laws, regulations, and contractual agreements. $944,534 of the City's business­
type activities' net position is restricted for debt service. 

The second statement presents a brief look at the operations. We offer some broad observations about 
this year's operations. Compared to the prior year, total governmental revenues increased $93,431. 
The utilities had a decrease in revenues of $776,398. The change in net position was an increase of 
$69,069 for governmental-type activities and an increase of $385,790 for business-type activities. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

NET POSITION 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmentil ACtlVmea Buslness-tjpi ActlVltIii 
6-30-16 6-30-15 6-30-16 6-30-15 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 1,278,215 1,207,876 4,110,621 3,800,839 
Restricted Assets 4,650 70,008 944,534 950,919 
Non-Current Assets 311661701 311141376 11 18661206 1210161983 

Total Assets 4,4492566 423922260 1619212361 1617682741 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2701192 1131553 1821002 831828 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 157,248 169,444 1,498,429 1,522,166 
liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 147,309 150,254 
Non-Current liabilities 11921 1369 11471947 3,5831002 3,6771271 

Total Liabilities 220781617 119171391 512281740 513491691 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 651402 81 1752 561182 701227 

NET POSITION 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 2,235,858 2,079,002 9,071,528 8,734,463 
Restricted 161,937 252,322 944,534 950,919 
Unrestricted 1771944 1751346 118021379 117471269 

TOTAL NET POSITION 2,575,739 2,506,670 11,818,441 11,432,651 
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Totil Total 
6-30-16 6-30-15 

5,388,836 5,008,715 
949,184 1,020,927 

1510321907 151131 1359 

21 13702927 21 11612001 

4521194 1971381 

1,655,677 1,691,610 
147,309 150,254 

~504,371 5,425,218 

713071357 712671082 

121 1584 1511979 

11,307,386 10,813,465 
1,106,471 1,203,241 
119801323 119221615 

14,394,180 13,939,321 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTlNUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

OPERATING RESULTS 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental ACtlvltliS BUslness-tYPi ACtIvities Total Total 
6-30-16 6-30-15 6-30-16 6-30-15 6-30-16 6-30-15 

_._._-_.-

PROGRAM REVENUES 
Charges for Services 48,101 57,139 2,724,284 2,962,595 2,772,385 3,019,734 
Operating Grants and Contributions 69,828 83,794 69,828 83,794 
Capital Grants and Contributions 51,500 1,500 324,706 863,474 376,206 864,974 

GENERAL REVENUES 
Property Taxes 85,170 85,093 85,170 85,093 
Occupational Ucenses and Tax 907,418 884,840 907,418 884,840 
Insurance Premiums Tax 187,345 155,258 187,345 155,258 
Franchise Fees 9,605 9,242 9,605 9,242 
Investment Income 3,911 4,516 18,560 19,265 22,471 23,781 
Sale of Surplus Property 4,515 3,250 1,386 5,901 3,250 
Miscellaneous 12,414 1z744 12,414 1,744 

Total Revenues 1,379,807 112861376 310681936 318451334 414481743 5,131 1710 

PROGRAM EXPENSES 
General Government 247,730 211,219 247,730 211,219 
Public Safety 638,752 550,627 638,752 550,627 
Street Department 38,185 38,345 38,185 38,345 
LGEA 
Parks and Recreation 339,379 322,637 339,379 322,637 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 46,692 50,327 46,692 50,327 
Water 1,505,042 1,441,929 1,505,042 1,441,929 
Sewer 218,298 226,990 218,298 226,990 
Natural Gas 9591806 1z2081313 9591806 1,208z313 

Total Expenses 1,3101738 11173z155 2,683,146 2,877,232 3,993,884 4,050,387 

EXCESS BEFORE TRANSFERS 69,069 113,221 385,790 968,102 454,859 1,081,323 

Transfers 

INCREASE IN NET POSmON 69,069 113,221 385,790 9681102 454,859 1,081,323 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS· CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - CONCLUDED 

Following are the governmental revenues as a percent of total, to assist in the analysis of the City's 
activities: 

6-30-16 6-30-15 

Occupational Licenses and Tax 67% 69% 
Insurance Premiums Tax 15% 12% 
Operating Grants and Contributions 6% 7% 
Property Taxes 7% 7% 
Charges for Services 4% 4% 
Franchise Fees 1% 1% 

Governmental Revenues ~ 100% 

Following are the governmental expenses as a percent of total, to assist in the analysis of the City's 
activities: 

6-30-16 6-30-15 

Police 41% 39% 
Administration 19% 18% 
Parks and Recreation 26% 28% 
Fire 2% 2% 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 4% 4% 
E911 6% 6% 
Streets 2% 3% 

Governmental Expenses 100% 100% 

The business-type activities are shown comparing revenues generated to costs incurred by the related 
utility services. Water, sewer, and natural gas utilities are intended to be self-supporting with user 
charges and other revenues designed to recover costs. Economic events and weather patterns can 
either positively or negatively impact these services and costs. 

Following are the business-type activities' revenues versus costs: 

• Water Fund revenues were $1,503,423 as compared to costs of $1,505,042. 

• Sewer Fund revenues were $221,262 as compared to costs of $218,298. 

• Natural Gas Fund revenues were $999,599 as compared to costs of $959,806. 
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTS FUNDS 

Governmental Funds 

The fund statements present the City's financial information in a more detailed format, but there are 
other differences as well. Fund statements provide important information about the City's compliance 
with laws and regulations that define the local government environment in Kentucky. The principles of 
measurement in the governmental fund statements are also different from the government-wide 
statements. Fund statements focus on current resources, while the government-wide statements 
present the long-term view. 

Financial information for the City's governmental funds is summarized on the balance sheet for 
governmental funds and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of 
governmental funds. Governmental fund balances increased $21,228, which includes a decrease of 
$38,698 from operations and an increase of $59,926 from other financing sources. 

This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with 
upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds report ending fund balances of $1,234,198. Of 
this year-end total, approximately $1,192,860 is unassigned, indicating availability for continuing City 
service requirements. Restricted fund balances include $4,650 for general fund reserve and $36,688 
for special revenue funds. 

Major Governmental Funds 

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service 
delivery. Fund balance of the general fund increased by $41,125. 

The special revenue fund is made up of two individual funds (municipal road aid and LGEA), which are 
combined in the supplementary information. Fund balance of the special revenue fund decreased by 
$19,897. 

Proprietary Funds 

The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting 
both short-term and long-term information 'about financial status. 

Financial information for the City's proprietary funds is summarized on the statement of net position for 
proprietary funds and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as well as the 
statement of cash flows for proprietary funds. Total net pOSition increased by $385,790, which includes 
net operating income of $155,374 and net revenue from non-operating activities of $230,416. 

Major Proprietary Funds 

The City of Edmonton reports the activities of the water fund, sewer fund, and natural gas fund. 

The water fund reported an increase in net position of $8,043. The water fund had net income of 
$85,170 from operations and $n,064 of net expenses from non-operating activities. The water fund 
reports a net position amount of $6,535,683, of which $870,420 is restricted for debt service. 

The sewer fund reported an increase in net position of $331,681. The sewer fund had a net income of 
$21,966 from operations and $309,715 net income from non-operating activities. The sewer fund 
reports a net position amount of $3,026,880, of which $74,112 is restricted for debt service and $2 for 
sewer projects. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONnNUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS - CONCLUDED 

Major Proprietary Funds - Concluded 

The natural gas fund reported an increase in net position of $46,066. The natural gas fund had net 
income of $48,301 from operations and $2,235 net expenses from non-operating activities. The natural 
gas fund reports a net position amount of $2,255,878, all of which is unrestricted. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Budgetary comparison schedules include information about both the original budget and the amended 
budget. Generally, budgets are amended to add projects that were not anticipated when the budget 
was first adopted. Over the course of the year, the City's budget may be revised by the City Council. 
Revenue budgets are usually estimated lower to allow budgetary flexibility for additional projects. 

The increase in the general fund balance was more than budget estimates by $177,835: revenues were 
more than budget by $159,829, expenditures were more than budget by $21,994, and other financing 
sources were more by $40,000. 

Budgetary comparison schedules for major individual funds are found in the required supplementary 
information. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRAnON 

The City invests substantial resources in capital assets that support the services provided to the public. 
Following are tables summarizing the City's capital assets and long-term debt. 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
CAPITAL ASSETS Governmental Buslneaa-type 

Activities Activities Total 

Land 1,728,689 89,863 1,818,552 
Land Improvements 7,700 7,700 
Buildings and Improvements 1,335,868 19,236,617 20,572,485 
Equipment and Furnishings 300,651 637,379 938,030 
Vehicles 703,207 229,792 932,999 
Streets and Sidewalks 287,979 287,979 
Municipal Park 973,103 

5,337,197 20,193,651 
9731103 

25,530,848 
Accumulated Depreciation (2,170A96) ( 8,3271530) (101498,026) 

TOTAL 3,166,701 11,866,121 1520322822 
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MANAGEMENT'S DrSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION - CONCLUDED 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
LONG-TERM DEBT Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 
Capital Leases 

General Obligation 
MuniCipal Park 664,289 

Special Obligation 76,554 
KADD - City Hall 190,000 

Total Capital Leases 930,843 0 

Loans 
KY Infrastructure Authority 146,710 
Kentucky League of Cities 181 1250 

Total Loans 0 3271960 . 

Bonds 
Revenue Bonds 

1980 Issue 19,000 
1982 Issue Ser A 43,000 
1982 Issue Ser C 5,000 
1984 Issue 270,943 
1990 Issue 228,000 
1993 Issue 221,000 
1995 Issue 318,000 
1996 Issue 154,200 
2000 Issue 682,000 
2002 Issue 89,500 
2013 Issue 582,700 

Total Bonds 0 216131343 

All of the City's capital leases have been used to acquire or construct capital assets. 

NET PENSION LIABILITY 

Total 

664,289 
76,554 

1901000 

9301843 

146,710 
181 1250 

3271960 

19,000 
43,000 

5,000 
270,943 
228,000 
221,000 
318,000 
154,200 
682,000 

89,500 
582100 

216131343 

At June 30, 2016, per GASB No. 68 and GASB No. 71, the City of Edmonton reported a liability for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for CERS. The amount recognized by the City as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability was $1,935",867. This amount was allocated 
proportionately between the Governmental Activities and the Business-type Activities. 

TP&C Page 17 



r .. .~ -0 . . J • r • 0 ., 

J 
0, , I' 

U 
A 

J 
, 

~ 

0 
J 
J 

, 1 

J 
0' 

. , J 
<' 

J 
, 1 J 

J 
C· t ' . J 

I T J 
c 

J 
0, 

J 
J 
J 
0 



r 
r 
n 
r 
r 

r 
n 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

THE OUTLOOK FOR NEXT YEAR 

As we prepare to move into the new fiscal year for the City, our economic outlook is cautiously 
optimistic. Cautious because our small businesses are struggling to keep open and new businesses 
are slow to open. The City needs entrepreneurs to take that risk and invest in our city. On the 
industrial side, we are optimistic about the industries we have now regarding job retention and job 
expansion. 

The partnership the City has with the Metcalfe County Fiscal Court and TVA on the construction of the 
spec building is an investment in our city and county. This building is already being marketed by TVA 
and the State Economic Cabinet on their websites. 

Concerns remain as always about the continued rising cost of health insurance premiums, cost of 
materials and supplies, and the Kentucky Retirement System deficit. 

The CERS pension cost and the liability of the City's shared percentage is now reflected in the City's 
financial statements. How this will affect the bond rating of the City is an unknown. The City has 
always funded its portion for the full amount while the state did not. The state, with approval of its bi­
annual budget, is finally addressing the issue by appropriating more money into the system but it will 
take a long time to get this issue resolved. 

The City has included in its budget the following projects and requests: 

• The City Hall administrative offices requests include general maintenance on building, office 
equipment, and website improvements. The request for a new phone system will be delayed until 
later in the fiscal year and, if revenues are holding, we will amend the budget at that time. 

• Parks and Recreation has the matching funds for a Land, Water and Conservation Grant 
application for picniC tables and reimbursement on fence repairs, and a new UTV for the park 
maintenance with additional funds for promotion activities. The park needs to be a place of 
activity year round and right now it is not. I will pursue the financial resources that will help the 
City to establish a YMCA-type facility that will be located at the entrance of Edmonton Memorial 
Park. I want to start expanding park activities with different events, such as a series of concerts 
in the park highlighting all types of musical entertainment. The purpose is to bring the community 
together for evenings of fun and family entertainment. We will also continue to review the youth 
sports programs and participation levels. 

• The Police Department needs include extra officers and vehicles to bring the force up to full staff. 
We are applying for a COPS grant, which has a 75%/25% match requirement for three years. 
We will also reapply for a USDA grant for three new vehicles. The 4x4 vehicles that the 
department purchased last year worked out great, so I have included funds to purchase another 
for use in inclement weather conditions. 

• The Public Works Department requests include funds for utility billing, chlorine scales, line 
locators, pressure recorders for natural gas lines, a zero tum diesel mower, an ice machine, 
updating of old equipment, and new equipment for DOW water quality compliance. Our water 
loss ratio is still too high, and we need to be getting that percentage down. 

• Capital projects requests consist of continuing the replacement of older water and gas meters 
with the radio read meters and a replacement of a vehicle. The City is also looking at making the 
Compton house better suited for City storage. 

TP&C Page 18 



" 

.. 
• 

" 

IJ 

, 

." 

, 

• 

] 

J 
J 
J 
J 
J 
J 
J 
J 
] 

J 
J 
J 
J 

J 

J 
J 

J 



n 
n 
n 
n 
n 

n 
n 
o 
n 
n 
n 
~ 

o 

n 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONCLUDED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

THE OUTLOOK FOR NEXT YEAR - CONCLUDED 

• The request last year concerning gathering information for a city waste collection within the Public 
Works Department is still ongoing. We are reviewing the information and hope to have a 
recommendation to the full council in the new fiscal year. 

• I will have the request for annexation of property to expand the city limits presented to the council 
in the first quarter of the fiscal year. The proposal is needed because at some pOint future growth 
will occur in these areas. 

The City will continue to honor our commitments to the various organizations that depend on city 
funding. Those organizations are the Hospice Program, the Historical Society, and the Chamber of 
Commerce. I will ask the Chamber to focus on the small retail businesses in the city. If it can be set up 
by the Kentucky revised statutes, I will propose that the City start a program with the financial 
institutions in town that will establish a revolving loan fund. Utilizing these loans, business owners will 
create economic development by opening new businesses and by making improvements on current 
businesses. 

For our full-time employees, I am proposing a .30-cent per hour increase and a 2 percent increase for 
the custodians. This proposal will bring up the employees that are on the lower end of the pay scale. 
When you factor in the health insurance premium increase along with the hourly raise, this is a very 
generous overall increase. 

The state road plan has the funding for the deSign, right of way acquisition, and utilities for the 
Edmonton By-Pass. Hopefully, these funds will be released this fiscal year and the project started. 
This project will relieve the commercial traffic around the square and give the City a new area to 
develop. 

The Sewer Rehab project will finally close out with the replacement of the Wilson Subdivision pump 
station, using the remaining grant funds and with the City utilizing reserve funds to complete the full 
cost. 

I have not included any revenue or expenditures into this budget concerning the wet/dry vote to be held 
in Metcalfe County. Each registered voter will have a choice to make. If it passes, the City will follow 
the process outlined by the Kentucky Statutes. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

If you have any questions, or need additional information about these financial statements, please 
contact Mayor Howard Garrett. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
ASSETS Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash on Hand and in Banks 798,469 2,944,910 3,743,379 
Investments 385,167 385,167 
Receivables, Net of Allowance 

for Uncollectible Accounts 
Property Taxes 2,213 2,213 
Trade Accounts 194,160 194,160 

Internal Receivable 453,898 439,674 893,572 
Due from Other Governments 

State of Kentucky 3,635 3,635 
Metcalfe County Fiscal Court 146,710 146,710 
Metcalfe County Board of 

Education 201000 201000 

Total Current Assets 112781215 411101621 513881836 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and Savings 

General Fund Reserve 4,650 4,650 
Sinking Funds 216,859 216,859 
Funded Depreciation 386,693 386,693 
Other Cash 3401982 3401982 

Total Restricted Assets 41650 9441534 9491184 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Capital Assets 

Land 1,728,689 89,863 1,818,552 
Other Capital Assets, Net of 

Accumulated Depreciation 1,438,012 11,776,258 13,214,270 
DepOSits 85 85 

Total Non-Current Assets 311661701 11 18661206 1510321907 

TOTAL ASSETS 41449;566 161921 1361 21 13701927 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Deferred Pension Charges 2701192 1821002 4521194 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

n 
l 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
LIABILITIES Governmental Business-type COMPONENT 

Activities Activities Total UNIT 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

r Accounts Payable 11,353 73,571 84,924 
Payroll Withholdings 19,050 19,050 
Accrued Expenses 

School Tax 5,601 5,601 
Sales Tax 3,099 3,099 
Vacation Accrual 18,264 32,181 50,445 

Meter DepOSits 401,944 401,944 

l Current Portion of 
Loans Payable 88,461 88,461 13,187 
Leases Payable 108,581 108,581 

Internal Payable ) 893,572 893,572 

[ 
Total Current Liabilities 1571248 114981429 11655z6n 131187 

n LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM 
RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Accrued Interest 40,709 40,709 

n Current Portion of 
Revenue Bonds 106,600 106,600 

Total Liabilities Payable 

n From Restricted Assets 0 1471309 1471309 0 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

[ 
Long-Term Portion of Financing 

Revenue Bonds 2,506,743 2,506,743 
Loans Payable 

Kentucky League of Cities 111,250 111,250 

G 
KIA 128,249 128,249 
Edmonton State Bank 117,725 

Leases Payable 

[ 
General Obligation 

Municipal Park 589,345 589,345 
Special Obligation 67,917 67,917 
KADD - City Hall 165,000 165,000 

~ 
Net Pension Liability 110991107 8361760 119351867 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 11921 1369 315831002 515041371 1171725 

C TOTAL LIABILITIES 210781617 512281740 713071357 1301912 

~ DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Deferred Pension Credits 651402 561182 121 1584 

l 

n 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF. NET POSlnON - CONCLUDED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental Business-type COMPONENT 

Activities Activities Total UNIT 
NET POSITION 

Invested in Capital Assets, 
Net of Related Debt 2,235,858 9,071,528 11,307,386 1,921,317 

Restricted for 
General Fund Reserve 4,650 4,650 
Debt Service 603,552 603,552 
Sewer Project 2 2 
Other 340,980 340,980 
Special Revenue Funds 36,688 36,688 
Public Services 19,011 19,011 
Public Safety 127 127 
Parks and Recreation 101,461 101,461 

Unrestricted 177,944 1,802,379 1,980,323 85,797 

TOTAL NET POSITION 2,575,739 11 18181441 1413941180 210071114 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Program Revenues 
Operating Grants 

Charges and 
Ex~enses for Services Contributions 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental Actlvhles 

General Government 247,730 19,005 
Public Safety 

Police 536,565 127 19,011 
Fire 28,873 
E911 73,314 

Street Department 38,185 30,728 
LGEA 1,084 
Parks and Recreation 339,379 47,974 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 461692 

Total Governmental Actlvhles 1,310,738 48,101 69,828 

Business-type Activities 
Water 1,505,042 1,503,423 
Sewer 218,298 221,262 
Natural Gas 9591806 9991599 

Total Business-type Activities 216831146 217241284 0 

Total Primary Government 319931884 217721385 691828 

COMPONENT UNIT 
Industrial Program 81 1484 251762 241000 

Total Component Unit 81 1484 251762 241000 
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Program Revenues 
Capital Grants 

and 
Contributions 

1,500 

50,000 

51,500 

324,706 

324,706 

376,206 

0 
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Net{Ex~enselRevenue 

( 227,225) 

( 467,427) 
( 28,873) 
( 73,314) 
( 7,457) 

1,084 
( 291,405) 
( 461692) 

(1,141 ,309) 

( 1,619) 
327,670 

391793 

365,844 

( 775,465) 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - CONCLUDED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Net (Expense) Revenue (12141 2309) 3652844 ( 7752465) 

General Revenues 
Taxes 

Property Taxes 85,170 85,170 
Occupational Licenses and Tax 907,418 907,418 
Insurance Premiums Tax '187,345 187,345 

Franchise Fees 9,605 9,605 
Investment Income 3,911 18,560 22,471 
Sale of Surplus Property 4,515 1,386 5,901 
Miscellaneous 12,414 12,414 

Transfers 

Total General Revenues 
and Transfers 112101378 191946 112301324 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 69,069 385,790 454,859 

NET POSITION-BEGINNING 2,506,670 11 ,432,651 13,939,321 

NET POSITION - ENDING 2,5751739 11,818,441 142394,180 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
BALANCE SHEET· GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

l 
:l Special Tolal 

General Revenue Governmental 
Fund Funds Funds 

r' ASSETS 
Cash on Hand and in Banks 765,416 33,053 798,469 
Receivables, Net of Allowance 

r for Uncollectible Accounts 
Property Taxes 2,213 2,213 

Due from Other Funds 453,898 453,898 
Due from Other Governments , 20,000 3,635 23,635 

~ 
Restricted Assets - Cash and Savings 

General Fund Reserve 4,650 4,650 

[ TOTAL ASSETS 1,246,1n 36,688 1,282,865 

j, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

l! Accounts Payable 11,353 11,353 
Payroll Withholdings 19,050 19,050 
Accrued Expenses - Vacation 18,264 181264 

Total Liabilities 48,667 0 48,667 

FUND BALANCES 

~ Restricted 4,650 36,688 41,338 
Committed 
Assigned 

n Unassigned 11192,860 1z1921860 

Total Fund Balances 1,197,510 361688 112341198 

n TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 1,246,177 361688 112821865 

r 
n 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental Bctlvltles in the statement of net position are 
different because: 

Capital assets of $5,337,197, net of accumulated depreciation of ($2,170,496), 
are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 
See Note 3 for additional details. 

Long-term liabilities of ($930,843) are not due and payable in the current period 
and are not reported in the funds. See Note 3 for additional details. 

The City of Edmonton's share of the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources, and deferred inflows of resources related to its participation in the 
County Employees Retirement System pension plan are not recorded in the 
governmental funds, but are recorded in the Statement of Net Position. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

r FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Special Total 
General Revenue Governmental · 

~ Fund Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Property Taxes 85,170 85,170 

n Occupational Licenses and Tax 907,418 907,418 
Insurance Premiums Tax 187,345 187,345 
Franchise Fees 9,605 9,605 

l 
Intergovernmental Revenue 38,016 31,812 69,828 
Penalties and Fines 127 127 
Parks and Recreation 47,974 47,974 
Other 121414 121414 

~ Total Revenues 1,288,069 31,812 1,319,881 

EXPENDITURES 

l Current 
General Government 186,103 186,103 
Public Safety 

r Police 456,004 456,004 
Fire 28,873 28,873 
E911 73,314 73,314 

Street Department 3,550 34,635 38,185 

l Parks and Recreation 270,640 270,640 
Capital Outlay 

General Government 9,155 9,155 

r Police 124,132 124,132 
Park 20,950 20,950 

Debt Service 
Principal 104,531 104,531 

l Interest 40,626 40,626 
Agent Fees 61066 61066 

[ 
Total Expenditures 113231944 34,635 113581579 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

ri 
( 351875) ( 21823) ( 38,698) 

I OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Interest Income 3,876 35 3,911 
Surplus Property Sales 4,515 4,515 
Grant Proceeds 51,500 51,500 
Transfers In and (Out) 171109 (171109) 0 

U Total Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 771000 (171074) 591926 

l 
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 41,125 (19,897) 21,228 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 111561385 561585 112121970 

I 
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 111971510 361688 112341198 

l See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Net Changes In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmentsl activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlays of $154,237 exceeded depreciation of ($101,911) in the current 
period. See Note 3 for additional details. 

The proceeds of debt issuance provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net position. Repayments of debt principal are expenditures in the 
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net position. The amount of debt payments was $104,531. See 
Note 3 for additional details. . 

Changes in the City of Edmonton's share of net pension liability, deferred outflows 
of resources, and deferred inflows of resources for the current year are not 
reported in the governmental funds, but are reported in the statement of activities. 

Change In Net Position of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Enter~rl88 Funds 
ASSETS Natural 

Water Sewer Gas 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash on Hand and in Banks 1,749,484 239,924 955,502 
Investments 385,167 
Receivables, Net of Allowance 
for Uncollectible Accounts 

Trade Accounts 136,377 19,952 37,831 
Due from Other Governments 146,710 
Internal Receivable 3121286 1271388 

Total Current Assets 2,344,857 259,876 1,505,888 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and Savings 

Sinking Funds 150,626 66,233 
Funded Depreciation 378,814 7,879 
Other Cash 3401980 2 

Total Restricted Assets 8701420 741114 0 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Capital Assets 

Land 88,363 1,500 
Other Capital Assets, Net of 

Accumulated Depreciation 6,567,051 3,732,628 1,476,579 
Deposits 85 

Total Non-Current Assets 61655,499 31734,128 1,4761579 

TOTAL ASSETS 91870l n6 410681118 21982,467 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Deferred Pension Charges 901033 121425 791544 
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Enter~rlse Funds 
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY Natural 

Water Sewer Gas Total 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

n Accounts Payable 53,894 2,185 17,492 73,571 
Accrued Expenses 

School Tax 3,753 1,848 5,601 
Sales Tax 2,231 248 620 3,099 
Vacation Accrual 14,695 1,794 15,692 32,181 

Meter Deposits 253,951 147,993 401,944 
Current Portion of Loans Payable 18,461 70,000 88,461 

[ Internal Payable 550,120 312,286 31,166 893,572 

Total Current Liabilities 8972105 3161513 2841811 124981429 

U LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM 
RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Accrued Interest 38,598 2,111 40,709 

r Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 91,800 14,800 106,600 

Total Liabilities Payable 
From Restricted Assets 1301398 161911 0 1471309 

n NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Long-Term Portion of Financing 

n Revenue Bonds Payable 1,849,343 657,400 2,506,743 
Loans Payable 

Kentucky League of Cities 111,250 111,250 
KIA 128,249 128,249 

Net Pension Uability 393,483 58,900 384,3n 836,760 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 21371 1075 7161300 4951627 315831002 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 313981578 1,049,724 780A38 51228,740 

n DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Deferred Pension Credits 261548 31939 251695 561182 

r NET POSITION 
Invested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt 4,714,271 3,061,928 1,295,329 9,071,528 
Restricted for 

Debt Service 529,440 74,112 603,552 

[l 
Sewer Project 2 2 
Other 340,980 340,980 

Unrestricted (Deficit) 950,992 ( 109,162) 960,549 1,802,379 

n TOTAL NET POSITION 615351683 310261880 212551878 11 1818A41 

Q See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSlnON - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

C FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

l 
Enter~rlse Funds 

Natural 
Water Sewer Gas Total 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for Services 1,432,298 216,924 984,704 2,633,926 
Miscellaneous 71 1125 41338 141895 90,358 

n Total Operating Revenues 115031423 221 1262 9991599 217241284 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and Wages 253,873 34,013 195,656 483,542 

[ Gas Purchased 421,172 421,172 
Water Purchased 472,982 472,982 
Utilities and Telephone 41,203 44,573 6,115 91,891 
Materials and Supplies 91,548 18,822 23,766 134,136 
Auto Expense 19,164 562 17,739 37,465 

..!.I Insurance 90,293 14,984 92,413 197,690 
Postage and Freight 9,187 1,125 8,052 18,364 

n Depreciation 292,344 50,213 56,802 399,359 
Legal and Accounting 9,622 2,950 8,850 21,422 
Payroll Taxes and Retirement 99,932 14,797 92,962 207,691 

n Miscellaneous Expenses 30,113 15,346 24,683 70,142 
Bad Debt Expense 81055 11911 31088 131054 

Total Operating Expenses 114181316 1991296 951 1298 215681910 

n OPERATING INCOME 851107 21 1966 481301 1551374 

r NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Grant Income 324,706 324,706 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets ( 1,139) 2,525 1,386 
Interest Income 10,801 1,486 6,273 18,560 

lJ 
Bond Interest ( 86,726) ( 19,002) ( 105,728) 
Loan Interest ( 7,438) ( 7,438) 
Loan Fees ( 11070) ( 11070) 

~ Total Non-Operating 
Revenues (Expenses) ( 771064) 3091715 ( 21235) 2301416 

~ INCREASE IN NET POSITION 8,043 331,681 46,066 385,790 

l NET POSITION - BEGINNING 615271640 216951199 212091812 11 ,4321651 

D 
NET POSITION· ENDING 615351683 310261880 212551878 11 1818,441 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Enterl!rlse Funds 
Natural 

Water Sewer Gas 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING 

INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating Income 85,107 21,966 48,301 
Adjustments for Items not Providing 

or Using Cash 
Depreciation 292,344 50,213 56,802 
(Gain) Loss on disposal of Assets 1,139 ( 2,525) 
(Incr~ase) Decrease in 

Receivables, Net of Allowance 
Trade Accounts ( 6,375) ( 305) ( 10,536) 

Restricted Assets - Cash and Savings 
Sinking Funds 28,543 ( 1,022) 
Funded Depreciation Funds ( 16,792) ( 2,793) 
Other Cash ( 1,551) ( 1,732) 

Increase (Decrease) in 
Accounts Payable 6,772 ( 48,940) ( 1,786) 
Accrued Expenses 

School Tax 1,254 ( 591) 
Sales Tax 1,139 78 ( 446) 
Vacation Accrual 5,769 1,629 ( 1,279) 

Meter Deposits 5,339 4,442 
Due to Other Funds 
Pension Deferred Inflows/Outflows 401329 61917 461626 

Net Cash Provided 
by Operating Activities 4431017 251218 1391801 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

TP&C Page 34 

Total 

155,374 

399,359 
( 1,386) 

( 17,216) 

27,521 
( 19,585) 
( 3,283) 

( 43,954) 

663 
771 

6,119 
9,781 

0 
931872 

6081036 



v 

f 

" 
) 

( 

) 

-,' 

J 

J 

o 

u 
o 
J 
lJ 

J 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 



c 
~ 

n 
n 

n 
[' 

L 

l 
r 
c 
I 
n 
n 
n 
n 
[ 

l 
[ 

1. 

CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTlNG POLICIES 

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The City of Edmonton was chartered in 1860. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of 
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police 
fire, and E911 dispatching); highways and streets; water, sewer, and natural gas utilities and 
public improvements; planning and zoning; parks and recreation; and general administrative 
services. 

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered 
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting 
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in Statements No. 14 and No. 39 of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise 
oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, 
but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the deSignation of management, the 
ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. The other criterion 
used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is 
the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise 
oversight responsibilities. There are two methods of Presentation of Component Units: 

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS 

Blended component units, although legally separate entities from the City, are in substance part of 
the City's operations, so data from the component unit is combined with data of the City. There 
are no blended component units for the City of Edmonton. 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

Discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns and rows in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. 
Only the discretely presented component unit disclosures considered essential to the fair 
presentation of the reporting entity's financial statements are presented in these notes. The entity 
that has been included as a discretely presented component unit in the City's financial statements 
is as follows: 

Edmonton-Metcalfe Industrial Development Authority - accounts for revenues and expenditures of 
industrial development activities. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement 
of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole. The primary 
government and component unit are presented separately within the financial statements with the 
focus on the primary government. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements 
distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and City general revenues, from 
bUSiness-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external 
customers. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONCLUDED 

Fund Financial Statements 

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues 
directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and 
may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and 
program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: 
(1) charges for services which report fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the 
City's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities 
including restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the 
acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to 
externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue sources not 
properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite 
columns for nonmajor funds. 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to government units. The City's 
reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements and applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements 
and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless 
they conflict with GASB pronouncements, in which case GASB prevails. 

Beginning July 1, 2003, the City changed its financial reporting to comply with GASB Statement 
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments. As part of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City is 
encouraged, but not required, to report major general infrastructure assets retroactively. Thus, the 
historical cost of infrastructure assets prior to July 1, 2003, is not included as part of the 
governmental capital assets reported in the government-wide financial statements. 

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal 
activity (between or within funds). Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. 
Proprietary fund financial statements and financial statements of the City's component unit also 
report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in 
these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax revenues are 
recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility 
requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both 
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION­
CONCLUDED 

collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest, which are 
reported as expenditures in the year due. 

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include property taxes, franchise taxes (fees), and 
intergovernmental revenues. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received. 
See Note 3 for related information. 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenue and 
expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues 
for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses 
are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation 
of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial 
statements. . 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed. See Note 3 for information 
describing restricted assets. 

FUND TYPES AND MAJOR FUNDS 

Governmental Funds 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

Genertll Fund - reports as the primary fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial 
resources not reported in other funds. 

The City reports the following non-major special revenue funds: 

Municipal ROild Aid Fund - accounts for the revenues and expenditures of Kentucky gas tax 
refunds. . 

LGEA Fund - accounts for the revenues and expenditures of mineral severance tax. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water Fund - accounts for the operating activities of the City's water utilities services. 

Sewer Fund - accounts for the operating activities of the City's sewer utilities services. 

Natural Gas Fund - accounts for the operating activities of the City's natural gas utilities services. 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY 

Cash and Investments 

The City's cash consists of cash on hand and demand depOSits. It is the policy of the City of 
Edmonton to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the highest investment return with 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY - CONTINUED 

Cash and Investments - Concluded 

the maximum security of principal while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the City of 
Edmonton and conforming to all State statutes and the City of Edmonton regulations governing the 
investment of public funds. Additional cash and investment information is presented in Note 3. 

Capital Assets and Depreciation 

The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year 
are stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital 
assets. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally 
capitalizes assets with cost of $1,000 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The 
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to an assefs value or materially extend 
its useful life are not capitalized, but are expensed as incurred. 

Capital assets, including those of component units, are depreCiated using the straight-line method. 
When capital assets are disposed, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is reported in operations. 

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows: 

Buildings and Infrastructure 
Improvements, other than Buildings 
Equipment and Furnishings 
Vehicles 

For information describing capital assets, see Note 3. 

Long-Term Debt 

25-50 
20-25 
5-10 
3-10 

In the government-wide, proprietary, and component unit financial statements, outstanding debt is 
reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, bond discounts, or premiums, and the difference 
between the requisition price and the net carrying value of refunded debt are capitalized and 
amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective 
interest method. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as 
other financing sources of the current period. Additional information regarding long-term debt is 
shown in Note 3. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

As defined by GASB Concept Statement No.4, Elements of Financial Statements, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the 
government that are applicable to a future reporting period and an acquisition of net position by the 
government that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and the balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

~ ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY - CONTINUED 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources - Concluded 
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deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until 
then. The City currently has one type of deferred outflows of resources: The City reports deferred 
penSion charges in its statements of net position in connection with its participation in the County 
Employees Retirement System. These deferred pension charges are either (a) recognized in the 
subsequent period as a reduction of the net penSion liability (which includes pension contributions 
made after the measurement date) or (b) amortized in a systematic and rational method as 
pension expense in future periods in accordance with GAAP. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred Inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The 
City currently has one type of deferred inflows of resources: The City reports deferred pension 
credits in its statements of net pOSition in connection with its participation in the County Employees 
Retirement System. These deferred pension credits are amortized in a systematiC and rational 
method and recognized as a reduction of pension expense in future periods in accordance with 
GAAP. 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations 
imposed on its use either through enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws and regulations of other governments. 
Unrestricted net position relates to those assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted- or 
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt. II 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

The City of Edmonton, Kentucky, has applied GASS Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmentsl Fund Type Definitions. This statement provides more clearly defined fund 
balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's 
fund balances more transparent. The governmental fund financial statements present fund 
balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to 
which the City of Edmonton, Kentucky, is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for 
which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the 
governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

Nonspendable - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The 
City does not have any nonspendable resources as of June 30, 2016. 

Restricted - This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the 
use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

n ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY· CONCLUDED 

Fund Balances· Governmental Funds· Concluded 
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constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City has classified restricted assets for 
special revenue funds as being restricted because their use is restricted by State statute for 
Municipal Road Aid and LGEA expenditures. Debt service resources are to be used for future 
servicing of the general obligation bond and are restricted through debt covenants. 

Committed - This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by 
taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were 
initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that 
existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 
requirements. The City did not have any committed resources as of June 30, 2016. 

Assigned - This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used 
for a specifiC purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by 
the City Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the Mayor through the 
budgetary process. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all 
governmental funds except for the general fund. The City did not have any assigned resources as 
of June 30, 2016. 

Unassigned - This classification includes amounts that are available for any purpose. At June 30, 
2016, the City had the remaining fund balance in the general fund as unassigned. 

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and 
then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively 
spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are recognized as revenue to the extent they are both measurable and available. 

Compensated Absences 

Full-time, permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified 
maximums depending on tenure with the City. Generally, after one year of service, employees are 
entitled to all accrued vacation leave upon termination. The estimated liability for vested vacation 
benefits attributable to the City's governmental funds is recorded as an expenditure and a liability 
in the respective funds. 

Unpaid accumulated sick leave is not recorded due to the contingent nature of the liability. The 
amount is earned, but only to be taken subject to the employee's illness. No amount is due upon 
termination. The accumulated potential amount is $78,342 at June 30, 2016. 

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The City of Edmonton, Kentucky, purchases its natural gas from Atmos Energy and purchases its 
water from the City of Glasgow, Kentucky. Due to the nature of the infrastructure system, the City 
of Edmonton, Kentucky, is economically dependent on these two suppliers. The infrastructure 
system of the City's enterprise funds serves residents of Edmonton and Metcalfe County. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTlNUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTlNG POLICIES - CONCLUDED 

USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting­
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

PENSIONS 

In government-wide financial statements, pensions are required to be recognized and disclosed 
using the accrual basis of accounting (see Note 4 and the required supplementary information 
immediately following the notes to the financial statements for more information), regardless of the 
amount recognized as pension expenditures on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City 
recognizes a net pension liability for the pension plan in which it participates, which represents the 
City's proportionate share of a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, measured as of the City's 
fiscal year-end. Changes in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension 
expense, or as deferred outflows or inflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in 
the period incurred. Those changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred outflows 
or inflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs and 
differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the weighted average 
remaining service life of all partiCipants in the respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a 
component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred. Projected 
earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a component of pension 
expense. Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred 
outflows or inflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension expense on a closed 
basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the difference occurred. 

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

Budget Policy and Practice 

The Mayor submits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with the City Charter and 
Kentucky Revised Statutes. The budget is presented to the City Council for review, and public 
hearings are held to address priorities and the allocation of resources. In June, the City Council 
adopts the annual fiscal year budgets for City operating funds. Once approved, the City Council 
may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated 
revenues and appropriations. 

Basis of Budgeting 

Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line-item basis. Revenues are 
budgeted by source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and class. The Mayor is 
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any 
revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council. Total 
expenditures for a fund may not legally exceed the total appropriations. There were no revisions 
to the budget during the year ended June 30, 2016. Annual budgets for all governmental fund 
types were adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT 

ASSETS 

CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

In March 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, 
which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2004. Risk disclosures in previous financial • 
statements (under the provisions of GASB Statement No.3) focused only on custodial credit risk. 
GASB Statement No. 40 addresses not only custodial credit risk, but other common areas of . 
investment risk as well, including interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of failure by a 
financial institution, the City may not be able to recover the value of its deposits and investments 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of the financial institution. The City's investment 
policy dictates that all cash maintained in any financial institution named as a depository be 
collateralized, the collateral held in the name of the City, and that investments be registered in the 
name of the City. Collateral must be held by an independent third-party custodian. 

At June 30, 2016, City of Edmonton, Kentucky's (book) deposits were $5,On,631, and the bank 
balance was $5,107,531 at Edmonton State Bank. The FDIC insures demand deposits under one 
custodian up to $250,000 at one institution, and time deposits are insured for another $250,000. 
Bond interest and sinking fund accounts are insured up to $250,000 per beneficial interest. At 
June 30, 2016, the City had funds of $4,357,531 in excess of FDIC limits, which were 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in 
the name of the City. 

The Edmonton-Metcalfe Industrial Development Authority has a bank account balance of $85,797. 
These amounts do not exceed FDIC insurance limits and are held for an entity separate from the 
City of Edmonton. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment. The City's formal investment policy does limit investment maturities as 
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

To the extent possible, the City will attempt. to match its investments with antiCipated cash flow 
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow need, the City's funds should not, in 
general, be invested in securities maturing more than two years from the date of purchase. 
However, the City may collateralize its repurchase agreements using longer dated investments in 
securities exceeding five years to maturity. Reserve funds may be invested in securities 
exceeding five years, if maturities of the investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable 
with the expected use of the funds. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Investments' are made under the 'prudent investor' standard outlined in the City's 
investment policy to ensure that (a) due diligence is exercised in accordance with State law, 
(b) any negative deviations are reported timely, and (c) reasonable action is taken to control any 
adverse developments. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

ASSETS - CONTINUED 

CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The City recognizes that some level of risk is inherent in any investment transaction. Losses may 
be incurred due to issuer default, market price changes, or closing investments prior to maturity 
due to unanticipated cash flow needs. Diversification of the City's investment portfolio by 
institution, type of investment instrument, and term to maturity is the primary method to minimize 
investment risk. 

The funds of the City of Edmonton available for investment shall be invested in accordance with 
the City's investment policy and all applicable State statutes only in the types of investment 
instruments as listed on the following page. 

TP&C 

1. Obligations of the United States and its agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations 
subject to repurchase agreements, provided that delivery of these obligations subject to 
repurchase agreements is taken either directly or through an authorized custodian. 

2. Obligations and contracts for future delivery or purchase of obligations backed by the full faith 
and credit of the United States or a United States government agency, including but not limited 
to: 

a. United States Treasury; 
b. Export-Import Bank of the United States; 
c. Farmers Home Administration; 
d. Government National Mortgage Corporation; and 
e. Merchant Marine Bonds. 

3. Obligations of any corporation of the United States government, including but not limited to: 

a. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; 
b. Federal Farm Credit Banks; 
c. Bank for Cooperatives; 
d. Federal Intermediate Credit Banks; 
e. Federal Land Banks; 
f. Federal Home Loan Banks; 
g. Federal National Mortgage Association; and 
h. Tennessee Valley Authority. 

4. Certificates of deposit issued by, or other interest-bearing accounts of, any bank or savings 
and loan institution which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or similar 
entity or which are collateralized, to the extent uninsured, by any obligations permitted by 
section 41.240(4) of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

5. Uncollateralized certificates of deposit issued by any bank or savings and loan institution rated 
in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

6. Bankers' acceptances for banks rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally 
recognized rating agency. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

ASSETS - CONTINUED 

CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONCLUDED 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concluded 

7. Commercial paper rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

8. Bonds or certificates of indebtedness of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and of its agencies 
and instrumentalities. 

9. Securities issued by a state or local government, or any instrumentality or agency thereof, in 
the United States, and rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized 
rating agency. 

10. Shares of mutual funds, each of which shall have the following characteristics: 

a. The mutual fund shall be an open-end diversified investment company registered under 
the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. 

b. The management company of the investment company shall have been in operation for at 
least five years. 

c. All of the securities in the mutual fund shall be eligible investments under this seqtion. 

Cash Flow Statement 

For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash consists of all enterprise fund bank accounts 
excluding restricted assets. 

RECEIVABLES 

General Fund 

Property Taxes - The City bills and collects its own property taxes. The City elects to use the 
annual property assessment prepared by the Metcalfe County Property Valuation Administrator as 
its base to apply the property tax rate. According to Kentucky Revised Statutes, the assessment 
date for the City must conform to the assessment date of Metcalfe County, and the annual 
increase in the property tax levy cannot exceed 4%. For the year ended June 30, 2016, taxes 
were levied on November 1, 2015, and due and payable on February 28, 2016. A 2% discount is 
given if paid by January 31. A penalty of 10% is charged for the month of March and 10% each 
month thereafter until they are paid. The tax rates are set by ordinance each year and were .085 
per $100 of assessed valuation of real property and .085 per $100 of assessed valuation of 
personal property. Liens are placed on property for delinquent taxes. All property taxes 
receivable at June 30 are considered delinquent. As of June 30, 2016, the receivable for property 
taxes was $2,213. 

Enterprise Fund Receivables and Uncollectible Accounts 

Significant receivables include amounts due from customers, primarily for utility services. Certain 
enterprise funds report accounts receivable, net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The 
allowance is estimated using an amount equal to all inactive accounts. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

ASSETS - CONTINUED 

RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED 

Enterprise Fund Receivables and Uncollectible Accounts - Concluded 

Following is a summary of the accounts receivable and allowances for uncollectible accounts as of 
June 30, 2016: 

Total 
Natural Enterprise 

Water Sewer Gas Funds 

Accounts Receivable 227,480 37,009 100,333 364,822 

Allowance for Uncollectibles ( 91,103) (17,057) ( 62,502) (170,662) 

Accounts Receivable, Net 136.3n 19.952 37,831 194,160 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Certain fund assets are restricted for construction funded through long-term debt. Net position 
restricted for debt service includes the excess of assets over certain liabilities restricted for the 
debt service or revenue bonds. Restricted assets are also reported in various funds for cash 
deposited in bank accounts legally restricted for specified uses, such as the payment of debt 
service and fiscal fees on long-term debt or mortgage loans. See Note 1 describing priority for use 
of restricted and unrestricted assets. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

~ ASSETS - CONTINUED 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Depreciation is recorded on all of the capital assets except for land, which is not a depreciable 
asset. Governmental activities include construction funded with general obligation bonds and 
debts. BUSiness-type activities include construction funded with revenue bonds payable and other 
charges. Following is a summary of changes in capital assets. 

Balance Balance r 
8-30-15 Additions Deletions 8-30-16 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental Activities 

Land 1,728,689 1,728,689 
Land Improvements 7,700 7,700 
Buildings and Improvements 1,335,868 1,335,868 
Equipment and Furnishings 303,098 3,255 5,702 300,651 
Vehicles 668,196 130,032 95,021 703,207 
Streets and Sidewalks 287,979 287,979 
Municipal Park ~2.1§3 20.950 973.103 

5,283,683 154,237 100,723 5,337,197 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 2.169.307 101.912 100.723 2.170.496 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net 3,114,376 52,325 0 3,166,701 

Buslneaa-type Activities 
Land 89,863 89,863 
Buildings and Improvements 19,045,785 190,832 19,236,617 
Equipment 635,695 1,684 637,379 
Vehicles 243.869 58.243 72.320 229.7~2 

20,015,212 250,759 72,320 20,193,651 
Leas Accumulated Depreciation \ 7.998.314 399.359 70.143 8.327.530 

Business-type Activities 
Capital Assets, Net 12.016.898 (148.600) 2.1 77 11.866.121 

~ 
COMPONENT UNIT 

r Industrial Development 
Land 187,097 187,097 
Buildings 755,413 755,413 
Electrical Transmission Line 1.647.755 1.647.7§§ 

n 2,590,265 2,590,265 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 481.777 56.259 538.036 

n Industrial Development 
Capital A88et8, Net 2.108•488 ( 1j6.25&) 2.052.229 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

ASSETS-CONCLUDED 

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental Activities 

General Government 
Police 
Parks and Recreation 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 
Water 
Sewer 
Natural Gas 

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type ActiVities 

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

COMPONENT UNIT 
Industrial Development 

LIABILITIES 

CAPITAL LEASES • GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

General Obligation Lease 

44,207 
12,413 
45,291 

101.911 

292,344 
50,213 
56,802 

399,359 

501,270 

56,258 

On November 23, 2003, the City entered into an annually renewable lease agreement with the 
Kentucky League of Cities Funding Trust. The total amount of the lease was $1,345,000 payable 
in monthly principal and interest installments beginning January 15, 2004, and ending 
December 15, 2023. The lease bears interest at 4.07%. The proceeds were used to construct a 
municipal park. At the end of the lease agreement, the park will be transferred to the City of 
Edmonton. The balance of the lease at June 30, 2016, was $664,289. 

Special Obligation Lease 

On November 23, 2003, the City entered into an annually renewable lease agreement with the 
Kentucky League of Cities Funding Trust. The total amount of the lease was $155,000 payable in 
monthly principal and interest installments beginning January 15, 2004, and ending December 15, 
2023. The lease bears interest at 4.07%. The proceeds were used to construct a municipal park. 
At the end of the lease agreement, the park will be transferred to the City of Edmonton. The 
balance of the lease at June 30, 2016, was $76,554. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

CAPITAL LEASES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - CONCLUDED 

KADD 

On October 10, 2002, the City entered into an annually renewable lease agreement with the 
Kentucky Area Development District Financing Trust. The total amount of the lease was $430,000 
payable in annual principal installments beginning November 20, 2003, and semi-annual interest 
payments due May 20 and November 20. The lease bears interest at a variable rate ranging from 
2.9% to 4.8% and matures November 20, 2022. The proceeds were used to construct a new City 
Hall building. At the end of the lease, the building will be transferred to the City of Edmonton. The 
balance of the lease at June 30, 2016, was $190,000. 

LOANS PAYABLE - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

There is a loan payable to Kentucky Infrastructure Authority dated July 1, 2014 in the amount of 
$174,907. The loan bears interest at 0.75% and matures on June 1,2024. Proceeds of the loan 
were used for water line extensions on Chess Jessie Road. There is a Memorandum of 
Agreement between the City of Edmonton and Metcalfe County Fiscal Court, who is making the 
payments. There is a receivable from Metcalfe County Fiscal Court equal to the amount of the 
note. As of June 30, 2016, the balance of the note and interest was $146,710. 

Kentucky League of Cities 

There is a loan payable to Kentucky League of Cities. Proceeds from the loan are being used to 
finance extensions to the gas system of the City. The loan balance was $181,250 as of June 30, 
2016. The interest is 3% per annum and is payable in monthly installments of principal and 
interest through January 1, 2019. 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Revenue bonds outstanding consist of debt issued by the various utility funds. In general, the 
respective facilities and revenues derived from them are pledged for the payment of revenue bond 
debt service. 

1980, 1982, and 1984 Issues 

The following issues have been assigned to Berkadia Commercial Mortgage Corporation by 
Farmers Home Administration in prior years. These bonds mature each January 1 through 2031 
and bear interest at the rate of 5%, with the following amounts due as of June 30, 2016: 

1990 Issue 

1980 Issue 
1982 Issue - Series A 
1982 Issue - Series C 
1984 Issue 

19,000 
43,000 
5,000 

270,943 

The water and sewer revenue bond of 1990 was issued to FmHA -- now Rural Development (RD) 
-- on September 17, 1992, in the amount of $373,000. This bond matures each January 1 through 
2031 and bears interest at the rate of 5%, with $228,000 due as of June 30,2016. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - CONTINUED 

1993 Issue 

The water and sewer revenue bond of 1993 was issued to RD on August 12, 1993, in the amount 
of $331,000. The proceeds from this bond issue were used to retire interim financing provided by 
the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. This bond matures each January 1 beginning in 1996 and 
ending in 2033. The bond bears interest at the rate of 5%, with $221,000 due as of June 30, 2016. 

1995 Issue 

The water and sewer revenue bond of 1995 was issued to RD on April 25, 1996, in the amount of 
$444,000. The proceeds from this bond issue were used to retire interim financing provided for 
water line extension projects. This bond matures each January 1 beginning in 1998 and ending in 
2035. The bond bears interest at the rate of 4.5%, with $318,000 due as of June 30,2016. 

1996lssue . 

The water and sewer revenue bond of 1996 was issued to RD on June 23,1997, in the amount of 
$221,000. The proceeds from this bond issue were used to retire interim financing provided for 
water line extension projects. This bond matures each January 1 beginning in 1998 and ending in 
2035. The bond bears interest at the rate of 4.5%, with $154,200 due as of June 30,2016. 

2000 Issue 

The water and sewer revenue bond series of 2000 was issued to RD on August 9, 2000, in the 
amount of $114,000. The proceeds from this bond issue were used for sewer infrastructure 
expansion. This bond matures each January 1 beginning in 2002 and ending in 2039. The bond 
bears interest at the rate of 4.5%, with $89,500 due as 9f June 30, 2016. 

2002 Issue 

The water revenue bond series of 2002 was issued to RD on March 20, 2003, in the amount of 
$814,000. The proceeds were used to retire interim financing provided for water line extension 
projects. The bond matures each January 1 beginning in 2005 and ending in 2042. The bond 
bears interest at the rate of 4.5%, with $682,000 due as of June 30, 2016. 

2013 Issue 

The water and sewer revenue bond series of 2013 was issued to RD on August 12, 2014, in the 
amount of $700,000. The proceeds were used to retire interim financing provided for a sewer 
rehab project. The bond matures each January 1 beginning in 2016 and ending in 2053. The 
bond bears interest at the rate of 2.125%, with $582,700 due as of June 30, 2016. 

There were heretofore created in the Prior Bond Ordinance the following funds and accounts for 
the City of Edmonton: 

a) Revenue Fund 
b) First Lien Sinking Fund 
c) Second Uen Sinking Fund 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - CONTINUED 

d) Depreciation Fund 
e) Operation and Maintenance Fund 

All of the funds shall be maintained with the ~epository bank so long as any bonds remain 
outstanding. 

Flow of Funds 

All proceedings preliminary to and in connection with the issuance of the Outstanding Bonds, 
including provisions made for (i) the receipt, custody and application of the proceeds of the 
Outstanding Bonds; (ii) the operation of the System on a revenue-producing basis; (iii) the 
segregation, allocation and custody of the revenues derived from the operation of the System; (iv) 
the enforcement and payment of the Outstanding Bonds and (v) the depreciation of the System; 
and all other covenants for the benefit of Bond owners set out in the Prior Bond Ordinance, are 
hereby ratified and confirmed and shall continue in force and inure to the security and benefit of 
the Outstanding Bonds, the same as if such provisions and proceedings were set out in full herein; 
provided, further, that after the issuance of the Current Bonds, the income and revenues of the 
System shall be collected, segregated, accounted for and distributed as follows: 

Revenue Fund 

The City covenants and agrees that it will continue to deposit in the Revenue Fund, promptly as 
received from time to time, all revenues of the System, as same may be extended and improved 
from time to time. The moneys in the Revenue Fund shall continue to be used, disbursed and 
applied by the City only for the purpose and in the manner and order of priorities specified in the 
Prior Bond Ordinance, as hereinafter modified by this Ordinance, all as permitted by the Act, and 
in accordance with previous contractual commitments. 

First Lien Sinking Fund 

There shall be transferred from the revenue fund and deposited into the first lien sinking fund on or 
before the 20th day of each month, for payment of interest on and principal of the First Lien Bonds, 
a sum equal to the total of the following: 

1. A sum equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next succeeding interest payment to become 
due on all First Lien Bonds then outstanding, plus 

2. A sum equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal of all of the First Lien Bonds 
maturing on the next succeeding principal payment date. 

Said First Lien Sinking Fund shall be used solely and only and is hereby pledged for the purpose 
of paying the principal of and interest on the First Lien Bonds. 

Second Lien Sinking Fund 

At or after the time that the Current Bonds have been delivered, there shall be transferred from 
the Construction Account into the Second Lien Sinking Fund an amount sufficient (currently 
estimated at $35,000) to provide for capitalized interest during the construction of the Project, if 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT· CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES· CONTINUED 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE • BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES· CONTINUED 

Second Lien Sinking Fund· Concluded 

and to the extent not theretofore expended in paying interest on interim financing and if and to the 
extent then needed to pay interest during the remaining period of construction of the Project. J 

After the monthly transfers required in the preceding paragraphs have been paid from the 
Revenue Fund, there shall next be transferred monthly from said Revenue Fund and deposited 
into the Second Lien Sinking Fund on or before the 20th day of each month, for payment of 
interest on and principal of the Second Lien Bonds and the Current Bonds, a sum equal to the total 
of the following: 

1. An amount equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next succeeding six-month interest 
payment to become due on the Second Lien Bonds and the Current Bonds then 
outstanding, plus 

2. An amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal of any Second Lien bonds 
and Current Bonds maturing on the next succeeding principal payment date. 

The Second Lien Sinking Fund is hereby pledged for the payment of the interest and the principal 
of the Second Lien Bonds and the Current Bonds, but subject to the vested rights and priorities of 
the First Lien Bonds. 

Annual Debt Service Requirement 

Actual Transfers 

Transfers Over (Under) Requirement 

Beginning Balance - Sinking Funds 

Ending Balance - Sinking Funds 

215,408 

187,887 

( 27,521) 

244,380 

216,859 

The current year required no transfers since excess transfers in previous years had aggregated a 
sufficient balance in the sinking fund. 

The 1986 and 1998 sinking fund requirements for the next five years are as follows: 

I Interest Principal 
Annual I 

Requirement 

June 30, 2017 110,063 106,600 216,663 
June 30, 2018 105,243 105,900 211,143 
June 30,2019 100,468 110,800 211,268 
June 30, 2020 95,471 115,600 211,071 
June 30, 2021 90,239 118,000 208,239 

501,484 556,900 1,058,384 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE· BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES· CONTINUED 

Depreciation Fund 

The separate and special "Depreciation Fund" previously established shall be maintained so long 
as any of the First Uen Bonds, Second Uen Bonds, Series 2002 Bonds, and .Series 2013 Bonds 
remain outstanding. There shall continue to be transferred to the Depreciation Fund (i) eight 
percent (8%) of the balance of the income and revenues of the System remaining after the 
required transfers or the sum of $200 whichever is greater, plus (ii) the sum of $1,145 until there 
is established and maintained in said Depreciation Fund the sum of $242,800, which shall be 
utilized in making good any depreciation in the properties of said System and in financing 
extensions, additions or improvements to the System. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
Section to the contrary, the sum of not less than $380 shall be deposited monthly so long as the 
Series 2002 Bonds remain outstanding. There shall next be transferred the sum of at least $230 
each month so long as the Series 2013 Bonds remain outstanding until a sum of at least $27,034 
is reached and maintained. As of June 30, 2016, the depreciation fund had a balance of 
$386,693, and the City was continuing to make the required transfers. 

There shall also be deposited in the Depreciation Fund proceeds from the sale of any equipment 
no longer usable or needed, fees or charges, if any, collected from potential customers, and the 
proceeds of any property damage insurance not immediately used to replace the damaged or 
destroyed property. Monies in the Depreciation Fund shall be used for making extraordinary 
maintenance, repairs, renewals or replacements to the System and for paying the cost of 
constructing improvements or extensions to the System which will either enhance the revenue 
producing capacity of the System or provide a higher degree of service, and no withdrawals shall 
be made for any other purposes; provided, however, that monies on deposit in the Depreciation 
Fund shall be available for the principal and interest requirements on the First Uen Bonds, the 
Second Uen Bonds, the Series 2002 Bonds, and the Series 2013 Bonds, if, for any reason, and 
whenever sufficient funds are not available in the First Uen Bond Fund or Second Uen Bond Fund. 

Operation and Maintenance Fund 

The separate and special account designated as the "Operation and Maintenance Fund" 
previously established shall be maintained so long as the First Uen Bonds, the Second Uen 
Bonds, the Series 2002 Bonds, and the Series 2013 Bonds remain outstanding. There shall be 
continued to be transferred to the Operation and Maintenance Fund the balance of the Revenue 
Fund remaining after the required transfers hereof for the purpose of providing for the proper 
operation and maintenance expenses of the System, including the expense of carrying sufficient 
insurance on the System of a character and in amounts was will properly insure the properties 
and, in addition, carrying liability insurance in character and amounts deemed necessary (all of 
which insurance shall be carried and maintained in effect) but not limited to such expenses and 
establishing and maintaining a reserve equal to three (3) months' operation and maintenance 
expenses of such System. Transfers shall be made monthly from the Revenue Fund to the 
Operation and Maintenance Fund so that the various operation and maintenance expenses of 
such System are met and said reserve established. Any funds remaining in such Operation and 
Maintenance Fund after meeting the expenses of operating such System shall be transferred to 
the Revenue Fund and disbursed in accordance with the provisions. 
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3. 

CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS w CONTINUED 

JUNE 30,2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE - BUSINESSwTYPE ACTIVITIES - CONTINUED 

Operation and Maintenance Fund w Concluded 

All required transfers above shall be made on the 1 st day of each month unless such day be 
Sunday or a legal holiday, in which event such transfers shall be made on the next succeeding 
secular day. 

Investment and Miscellaneous Provisions 

All monies in the Sinking Fund and the Depreciation Fund shall be deposited in the Depository 
Bank, or such portion thereof as is designated by the City Council. All monies in the Sinking Fund 
and the DepreCiation Fund shall be invested for the benefit of such respective Funds in Certificates 
of Time Deposit or savings accounts of the DepOSitory Bank or in U. S. Obligations which may be 
converted readily into cash, having a maturity date prior to the date when the sums invested will 
be needed for the purposes for which such funds may be expended, provided that to the extent 
that any amount of the City on deposit in the DepOSitory Bank shall cause the total depOSits of the 
City in said Depository Bank to exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, such excess amount shall 
be continuously secured by a valid pledge of U. S. Obligations, having an equivalent market value, 
in conformity with Section 66.480 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

Any investments will be a part of the respective Funds from which the proceeds invested are 
derived, and income from such investments will be credited to such respective Funds. All 
investments of funds derived from proceeds of the Outstanding Bonds shall be subject to the 
applicable limitations set out in Section 303 hereof. 

All payments into the Funds shall be made on or before the twentieth (20th
) day of each month, 

except that when the twentieth (20th
) day of any month shall be a Saturday, Sunday or a legal 

holiday, then such payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day. 

All monies held in any of the Funds shall be kept apart from all other City funds and shall be 
deposited in the DepoSitory Bank, and all such depOSits which cause the aggregate of all deposits 
of the City therein to be in excess of the amount secured by FDIC, shall (unless invested as herein 
authorized) be secured by a surety bond or bonds or by a pledge of U.S. Obligations, having a 
market value equivalent to such deposit. 

The Treasurer shall keep appropriate records as to payment of principal and interest installments 
and as to payment of principal of and interest on any Bonds. 

Monthly Principal and Interest Payments If Requested by the RD 

In the event that USDARD is the Registered Owner of the Series 2002 Bonds, then in the event 
USDARD so desires, payments to USDARD from the Second Lien Bond Fund for interest and 
principal installments on the Second Lien Bonds and Series 2002 Bonds shall be made directly to 
USDARD on a monthly basis. The City shall submit the Electronic Funds Transfer Payment 
Enrollment Form (Form SF-3881) in order to affect Electronic Funds Transfer/Automated Clearing 
House ("EFT/ACH") and provide electronic transfer payments due on the Series 2002 Bond. It is 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT· CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES· CONTINUED 

REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE· BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES· CONCLUDED 

Monthly Principal and Interest Payments If Requested by the RD • Concluded 

provided further that so long as USDARD is the Registered Owner of the Series 2002 Bonds, 
monies on deposit in all of the various accounts established or affirmed by this Ordinance shall be 
secured as required by USDARD Regulation~. Also, so long as any of the Series 2013 Bonds are 
held or insured by USDARD, the City shall, if requested by USDARD, make the payments required 
in monthly installments to USDARD or to the insured owners of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Bond Subordination and Parity 

The provisions of the Ordinance authorizing the First Lien Series A, B, and C 1982 Bonds made it 
a condition precedent to the issuance and delivery of said Series 1982 Bonds that the right of the 
City to issue subsequent bonds ranking on a parity with said Series 1982 Bonds be terminated. 
Therefore, in accordance with provisions of Section 17 of the Ordinance authorizing the Series 
1982 Bonds, no bonds may be issued on the basis of parity with the Second Lien Bonds without 
the written consent of the Registered Owners of one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount of said Second Lien Bonds. The Series 2013 Bonds shall rank and be payable on a parity 
with said outstanding Second Lien Bonds from the gross income and revenues of the System, 
subject to the priority of the outstanding First Lien Bonds. 

LOAN PAYABLE - COMPONENT UNIT 

Industrial Program 

On April 20, 2012, the Industrial Development Authority entered into an agreement with Edmonton 
State Bank to borrow funds for the construction of a building for industrial purposes. The total 
drawn on the loan was $248,649. Construction was completed in November 2012, and the loan 
became due and payable in monthly installments of $1,513 and bears interest at 3.5% per annum. 
The balance at June 30, 2016, was $130,912. 

TP&C Page 54 



• 

) 

J 
J 
] 

J 
o 
~ 

Ll 

U 
U 
L1 

o 
J 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 



r 
CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

n 
JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

~ LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

~ 
CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2016: 

Balance Balance Due Within 
6-30-15 Issued Retired 6-30-16 One Year 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental Activities 

General Obligation Leases 
Municipal Park 735,602 71,313 664,289 74,944 

Special Obligation Lease 
Municipal Park 84,772 8,218 76,554 8,637 

J KADD - City Hall 215z000 25z000 190z000 25z000 

n Total Governmental Activities 1,035,374 0 104,531 930,843 108,581 

Business-type Activities 

Q 
Loans Payable 

KY Infrastructure Authority 165,205 18,495 146,710 18,461 
Kentucky League of Cities 248z333 67z083 181 z250 70z000 

4131538 0 851578 3271960 881461 

Revenue Bonds Payable 
1980 Issue 23,000 4,000 19,000 4,500 

n 1982 Issue - Series A 50,500 7,500 43,000 8,000 
1982 Issue - Series C 10,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 
1984 Issue 293,943 23,000 270,943 25,000 
1990 Issue 238,000 10,000 228,000 11,000 

n 1993 Issue 229,000 8,000 221,000 9,000 
1995 Issue 328,000 10,000 318,000 10,000 
1996 Issue 159,300 5,100 154,200 5,300 
2000 Issue 91,700 2,200 89,500 2,300 
2002 Issue 696,000 14,000 682,000 14,000 
2013 Issue 700z000 117z300 582z700 12z500 

218191443 0 2061100 216131343 1061600 

Total Business-type Activities 312321981 0 291 1678 21941,303 195,061 

COMPONENT UNIT 
Industrial Program 

Edmonton State Bank 143z577 12z665 130z912 13z187 

~ Total Industrial Program 1431577 0 121665 1301912 131187 

r 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONTINUED 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

The debt service requirements at June 30, 2016, were as follows: 

0 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT Principal Interest Total 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Leases 

June 30, 2017 108,581 37,115 145,696 

C June 30, 2018 112,836 32,412 145,248 
June 30, 2019 117,309 28,102 145,411 
June 30, 2020 122,015 22,674 144,689 

r June 30, 2021 131,948 19,706 151,654 
June 30, 2022 - 2024 338,154 151711 3531865 

930,843 1551720 110862563 

Total Governmental Activities 9302843 1552720 110861563 

Business-type Activities 
Loans Payable 

June 30, 2017 87,162 6,724 93,886 
June 30, 2018 87,292 4,460 91,752 
June 30, 2019 58,671 2,196 60,867 
June 30, 2020 17,553 804 18,357 
June 30, 2021 17,684 638 18,322 
June 30, 2022 - 2024 531855 896 541751 

3221217 151718 3371935 
Revenue Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2017 106,600 110,063 216,663 
June 30, 2018 105,900 105,243 211,143 
June 30, 2019 110,800 100,468 211,268 
June 30, 2020 115,600 95,471 211,071 
June 30, 2021 118,000 90,239 208,239 
June 30, 2022 - 2026 558,743 371,632 930,375 
June 30, 2027 - 2031 532,500 255,049 787,549 
June 30, 2032 - 2036 439,000 143,911 582,911 
June 30, 2037 - 2041 306,000 73,753 379,753 
June 30, 2042 - 2046 151,000 27,502 178,502 
June 30, 2047 - 2049 691200 91614 781814 

226131343 113821945 319961288 

[ Total Business-type Activities 219351560 113981663 413341223 

[ 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONTINUED 

LIABILITIES - CONCLUDED 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS - CONCLUDED 

COMPONENT UNIT Prln~l~al Interest 
Industrial Program 

June 30, 2017 13,187 4,996 
June 30, 2018 13,725 4,459 
June 30, 2019 14,284 3,900 
June 30, 2020 14,866 3,318 
June 30, 2021 15,472 2,712 
June 30, 2022 - 2025 59,378 4,360 

Total Component Unit 13°1912 231745 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Total 

18,183 
18,184 
18,184 
18,184 
18,184 
63,738 

1541657 

The City is exposed to various forms of loss related to torts, theft or damage to assets, errors and 
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Each of these risk areas is covered 
through the purchase of commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in 
coverage from the prior year. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The City purchases unemployment insurance through the Kentucky League of Cities; however, 
risk has not been transferred to that fund. Under COBRA, employers are mandated to notify 
terminated employees of available continuing insurance coverage. Failure to comply with this 
requirement may put the City at risk for a loss contingency. Claims expenditures and liabilities 
would be reported in the affected fund if and when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. 

BALANCES AND TRANSFERSIPAYMENTS WITHIN THE REPORTING ENTITY 

RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES 

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as "due to/from other funds" include 
outstanding charges by one fund to another for subsidy commitments outstanding at year-end, and 
other miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds. Activities between funds that are 
representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are 
described as "due to/from other funds". 

Activities in which the component unit is a party are captioned as "receivables/payables" between 
the component unit and the primary government. Internal receivable and payable balances at 
June 30, 2016, are listed on the following page. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONnNUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

3. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNIT - CONCLUDED 

BALANCES AND TRANSFERSIPAYMENTS WITHIN THE REPORnNG ENTITY -
CONCLUDED 

RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES - CONCLUDED 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental-type Activities 

General Fund 
Buslnesa-type Activities 

Water 
Natural Gas 
Sewer 

TRANSFERS AND PAYMENTS 

I Internal 
Receivables 

453,898 

312,286 
127,388 

893,572 

Internal I 
Payables 

550,120 
31,166 

312,286 
893.572 

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the purpose of subsidizing 
operating functions and funding capital asset acquisitions. Resources are accumulated in a fund 
or component unit to support and simplify the administration of various projects or programs. The 
government-wide statement of activities eliminates transfers as reported within the governmental 
activities column. 

Transfers between funds were as follows: 

Transfers to (from) 

4. REnREMENT PLAN 

GENERAL 
FUND 

17,109 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
County Employees' Retirement System 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

FUND 

(17,109) 

The City of Edmonton, Kentucky is a participant in the Commonwealth of Kentucky's County 
Employees' Retirement System (CERS), a multiple-employer public employee retirement system. 
CERS is administered by Kentucky Retirement Systems Board of Trustees pursuant to 
KRS 78.510-78.852. All full-time employees are required to partiCipate in the Plan as well as any 
part-time employees who average one hundred or more hours per month. The Kentucky 
Retirement System (KRS) issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for CERS. The report is. available at 
www.kyret.ky.gov or by writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Premier Park West. 1260 
Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601. CERS prepares its financial statements in 
accordance with GASB statements and generally accepted accounting principles. The accrual 
basis of accounting is used for all funds. Contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to 
statutory requirements. Benefits are recognized in the month they are earned and withdrawals are 
recognized in the month they are due and payable. Investments are recognized at fair value. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONnNUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

REnREMENTPI..AN-CONnNUED 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
County Employees' Retirement System - Concluded 

Funding for the Plan is provided through payroll withholdings and participating employer 
contributions. Hazardous and non-hazardous employees hired before September 1, 2008, are 
required to contribute 8% and 5%, respectively; those hired after September 1, 2008, are required 
to contribute 9% and 6%, respectively. The City is required to contribute 32.95% and 17.06%, 
respectively, of regular covered employee. compensation for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
Benefits under the Plan will vary based on final compensation, years of service, and other factors 
as fully described in the Plan documents. 

The payroll for hazardous and non-hazardous employees covered by CERS for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, was $264,805 and $630,967, respectively; the City's total payroll was $940,325. 
The contribution payments for the year ended June 30, 2016, were $246,602, which consisted of 
$194,896 from the City and $51,706 from employees. Employer contribution rates, determined by 
the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems, are intended to fund the CERS's 
normal cost on a current basis plus fund an amount equal to the amortization of unfunded past 
service costs over thirty years, using the level percentage of payroll method. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2016, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability 
for CERS. The amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the net pension liability 
was $1,935,867. The net pension liability for the plan was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. At June 30, 2015, the City proportion was .04860% for hazardous and 
.02719% for non-hazardous. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $397,782. At June 30, 
2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total 

HAZARDOUS 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

16,203 

64,469 

4,685 43,270 

29,774 

87.253 

202.384 43.270 

NON-HAZARDOUS 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

9,715 

117,882 

10,479 

4,091 

107.643 

249.810 

78,314 

78.314 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

RETIREMENT PLAN-CONTINUED 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - Concluded 

The $87,253 (Hazardous) and $107,643 (Non-Hazardous) reported as deferred outflows of 
resources related to pensions resulting from the City's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending 
June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

DEFERRED AMOUNT TO BE RECOGNIZED IN FISCAL YEARS 
FOLLOWING THE REPORTING DATE 

June 30, 2017 
June 30, 2018 
June 30, 2019 
June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Hazardous 
12,606 
12,606 
12,607 
12,607 
21,435 

Non-
Hazardous 

19,689 
19,689 
19,688 

1,873 
2,914 

The total pension liability for KRS was determined by applying ' procedures to the actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2015. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, 
used the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement: 

Valuation Date 
Experience Study 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Inflation 
Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return 

June 30, 2015 
July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013 
Entry Age Normal 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
28 years 
5-year smoothed market 
3.25% 
4.0%, average, including inflation 
7.50%, net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with 
Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired 
members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back for one year for females). For disabled members, the 
RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back four years 
for males) is used for the period after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current 
mortality tables for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed 
again when the next experience investigation is conducted. 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies 
prepared every five years for the Systems. The most recent analysis, performed for the period 
covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013, is outlined in a report dated April 30, 2014. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONnNUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

REnREMENTPLAN-CONnNUED 

Actuarial Assumptions - Concluded 

Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term historical data, estimates inherent in 
current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were 
developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined 
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital 
market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 1o-year 
horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension plans 
which covers a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption and is 
not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the 
inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future 
years. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local employers would contribute the 
actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the remaining 28-year 
amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Projected inflows from investment 
earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment return of 7.50%. The long-term 
investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes In the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rates 
selected by CERS as well as what the City's net penSion liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the 
current rate: 

HAZARDOUS 

1% Decrease 
Current Discount Rate 
1% Increase 

NON-HAZARDOUS 

1% Decrease 
Current Discount Rate 
1% Increase 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Discount 
Rate 

6.50% 
7.50% 
8.50% 

Discount 
Rate 

6.50% 
7.50% 
8.50% 

City's 
Proportionate Share of 
Net Pension L1abllltv 

977,977 
764,024 
586,760 

CIty's 
Proportionate Share of 
Net Pension Llabllltv 

1,492,392 
1,169,014 

892,070 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued financial reports of CERS, included in Kentucky Retirement Systems Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. The effect of CERS on the City's net position has been determined on 
the same basis used by CERS. 
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5. 

CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

RETIREMENT PLAN-CONCLUDED 

Medical Insurance Plan 

Plan Description 

In addition to the pension benefits described above, Kentucky Revised Statute 61.702 requires 
CERS to provide post-retirement health care benefits to eligible members and dependents. 
Changes made to the medical plan may be made by the Kentucky Retirement Systems' Board of 
Trustees and the General Assembly. Additional information can be obtained in the 
aforementioned financial statements and required supplementary information for CERS. 

To be eligible for medical benefits, the member must have retired either for service or disability. 
The amount funded by the insurance fund depends on the months of service. The insurance fund 
shall continue the same level of coverage for a recipient who was a member of the CERS after the 
age of sixty-five as before the age of sixty-five, if the recipient is not eligible for Medicare coverage. 

Funding Polley 

The post-retirement health care provided by CERS is financed wholly or partly from funds 
contributed by the reCipient of a retirement allowance, by the Kentucky Retirement Systems 
insurance fund, or by another state-administered retirement system under a reciprocal agreement. 
Also, any premiums collected from retirees and investment interest help with the medical 
expenses of the plan. 

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

The City of Edmonton, Kentucky, has issued Kentucky Healthcare Refunding Revenue Bonds 
(T.J. Samson Community Hospital Project) Series 2012 to provide financial assistance to T.J. 
Samson Community Hospital in refunding its obligation with the Kentucky Economic Development 
Finance authority, which was used to acquire, construct, equip, and renovate its facilities deemed 
to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by a first pledge of the revenues of T.J. 
Samson Community Hospital. Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is 
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as 
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 

As of June 30, 2016, there was one series of Kentucky Healthcare Refunding Revenue Bonds 
outstanding'. The aggregate principal amount payable totaled $2,587,000. 

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On June 28, 2016, the citizens of Metcalfe County voted in favor of allowing the sale of alcoholic 
beverages within the boundaries of Metcalfe County. Subsequent to year-end, the City adopted 
the Alcohol Beverage Control Ordinance, which establishes licenses and fees for businesses 
engaged in alcohol sales pursuant to KRS 243.070. At this time, the impact on the City's financial 
position and operations is undeterminable. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

~ Actual Variance 
Budgeted Amounts Amounts With Final 

Orlslnal Final GAAP Basis Budget 

I REVENUES 
Property Taxes 82,500 82,500 85,170 2,670 
Occupational Licenses and Tax 730,000 730,000 907,418 177,418 

[ 
Insurance Premiums Tax 164,000 164,000 187,345 23,345 
Franchise Fees 9,000 9,000 9,605 605 
Intergovernmental Revenue 48,740 48,740 38,016 ( 10,724) 
Penalties and Fines 500 500 127 ( 373) 

n Parks and Recreation 50,000 70,000 47,974 ( 22,026) 
Other 151000 231500 121414 ( 11 1086) 

Total Revenues 1,099,740 1,128,240 1,288,069 159,829 
)" 

l EXPENDITURES 
Current 

~ 
General Government 205,165 213,665 186,103 27,562 
Public Safety 

Police 377,220 392,720 456,004 ( 63,284) 
Fire 36,500 36,500 28,873 7,627 

I E911 72,000 72,000 73,314 ( 1,314) 
Street Department 3,550 ( 3,550) 
Parks and Recreation 285,820 285,820 270,640 15,180 

l 
Capital Outlay 130,184 149,134 154,237 ( 5,103) 
Debt Service 

Principal 101,699 101,699 104,531 ( 2,832) 
Interest 44,346 44,346 40,626 3,720 

~ Agent Fees 6,066 61066 61066 0 

Total expenditures 112591000 113011950 113231944 ( 21 1994) 

C EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES ( 1591260) ( 1731710) ( 351875) 1371835 

n OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Interest Income 5,000 5,000 3,876 ( 1,124) 
Surplus Property Sales 4,515 4,515 
Grant Proceeds 50,000 50,000 51,500 1,500 
Transfers In (Out) ( 181000) ( 181000) 171109 351109 

Total Other Financing 371000 
Sources (Uses) 

371000 n1000 401000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ( 122,260) ( 136,710) 41,125 177,835 

FUND BALANCE· BEGINNING 111451857 111451857 111561385 101528 

FUND BALANCE· ENDING 110231597 110091147 111971510 1881363 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Actual 
Budgeted Amounts Amounts 

Original Final GAAP Basis 
REVENUES 

Intergovernmental Revenue 33,453 33,453 31,812 

Total Revenues 33,453 33,453 31,812 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Street Department 89,770 89,770 34,635 
LGEA 

Total Expenditures 89,nO 89,770 34,635 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (56,317) (56,317) ( 2,823) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Interest Income 35 
Transfers In (Out) (17,109) 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 0 0 (17,074) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (56,317) (56,317) (19,897) 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 56,317 56,317 56,585 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 0 0 36,688 

See independent auditor's report. 
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With Final 

Budget 

( 1,641) 

( 1 ,641) 

55,135 

55,135 

53,494 

( . 35) 
17,109 

171074 

36,420 

268 

361688 



CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
GASB 68 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

County Employees' Retirement System 

2015 2016 
City's proportion of the net pension liability 

Hazardous .045761% .04860% 
Non-Hazardous .027031% .02719% 

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 

Hazardous 549,963 746,024 
Non-Hazardous 876,980 1,169,014 

City's covered-employee payroll 
Hazardous 231,825 248,582 
Non-Hazardous 619,970 634,681 , 

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 

Hazardous 237.23% 300.11% 
Non-Hazardous 141.55% 184.19% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability 

Hazardous 63.46% 57.52% 
Non-Hazardous 66.80% 59.97% 

(The amounts presented were determined as of the previous fiscal year end date.) 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
GASB 68 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - CONCLUDED 

JUNE 30, 2016 

SCHEDULE OF CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

County Employees' Retirement System 

Contractually required contribution 
Hazardous 
Non-Hazardous 

Total 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency 

City's covered-employee payroll 
Hazardous 
Non-Hazardous 

Contribution as a percentage 
of covered- employee payroll 

Hazardous 
Non-Hazardous 

2015 

85,289 
112,092 
197,381 

(197,381) 

248,582 
634,681 

34.31% 
17.67% 

~ 

87,253 
107,643 
194,896 

(1941~96) 

264,805 
630,967 

32.95% 
17.06% 

(The amounts presented were determined as of the current fiscal year end date.) 

Schedules are Intended to show Information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information: 

TP&C 

Changes of benefit terms - None. 
Changes of a88umptlons: 

• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.75% to 7.50%. 
• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%. 
• The assumed rate of wage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%. 
• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00% 
• The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 

projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females.) 
• For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 

Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for 
females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table 
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period 
after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for 
possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again 
when the next experience investigation is conducted. 

• The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more 
accurately reflect experience. 

See independent auditor's report 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

ASSETS 
Cash in Banks 
Due from Other Governments 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES· RESTRICTED 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

TP&C 

Municipal 
Road Aid 

Page 69 

9,434 
3,635 

13,069 

13,069 

13,069 

LGEA 

23,619 

23,619 

23,619 

23,619 

Total 

33,053 
3,635 

36,688 

o 
36,688 

36,688 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Municipal 
Road Aid LGEA 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental Revenue 30,728 1,084 

Total Revenues 30,728 1,084 

EXPENDITURES 
Streets 34,635 
LGEA 

Total expenditures 342635 ° 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES ( 3,907) 12084 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Interest Income 35 
Transfers (17,109) 

, 
Total Financing Sources (Uses) (171109) 35 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (21,016) 1,119 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 34,085 22,500 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 13,069 23,619 
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Total 

31,812 

31 2812 

34,635 
0 

341635 

( 2,823) 

35 
(17,109) 

(172074) 

(19,897) 

56,585 

361688 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

EDMONTON-METCALFE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2016 

ASSETS 
Cash on Hand and in Banks 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE - COMMITTED 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE OISCRETEL Y PRESENTED 

COMPONENT UNIT - EDMONTON-METCALFE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Total Fund Balance - Component Unit 

Amounts reported for component unit in the statement of net position are different 
because: 

Capital assets of $2,590,265, net of accumulated depreciation of ($538,036), are 
not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fund. 

Long-term liabilities of ($130,912) are not due and payable in the current period 
and are not reported in the fund. 

Net Position of Component Unit 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

EDMONTON-METCALFE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

REVENUES 
Rent Income 
Intergovernmental 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Industrial Program 
Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE· BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 
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24,000 
25,762 

49,762 

19,706 

12,664 
5,520 

37,890 

11,872 

11,872 

73,925 
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CITY OF EDMONTON, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE OF THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED 
COMPONENT UNIT - EDMONTON-METCALFE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Net Change In Fund Balance - Component Unit 

Amounts reported for component unit in the statement of activities are different 
because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the 
statement of activities, the costs of these outlays are allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The amount of 
depreciation expense is ($56,258) in the current period. 

The proceeds of debt issuance provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net position. Repayments of debt principal are expenditures in the 
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net position. The amount of debt payments is $12,664. 

Change In Net Position of Component Unit 
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TAYLOR, POLSON & COMPANY, PSC 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

101 McKENNA STREET, P. o. BOX 1804 

GLASGOW, KENlUCKY 42142-1804 

TELEPHONE 2'10-651-8877 
FAX 270-651-8879 

JOHN M. TAYLOR, CPA 
FREDDIE C POLSON, CPA 
BELINDA E. COULTER, CPA 

BRANCHomCE 
108 WEST THIRD STREET 

P.O. BOX 778 
TOMPKINSVILLE, KENTUCKY 42167 

JANET M. WILEY, CPA 
JOHNM. TAYLORUI,CPA 
JEFFP. CAKTER, CPA 

TELEPHONE 270-487-6515 

PAX 270-487-6515 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Edmonton, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the bUSiness-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Edmonton, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of 
Edmonton, Kentucky's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 
25,2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Edmonton, 
Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Edmonton, 
Kentucky's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Edmonton, Kentucky's internal control. 

A dsf/clency In Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material WfNJlcneBB is a deficiency, or a 
combination of defiCiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A slgnHicant dsf/c/ency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not deSigned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Edmonton, Kentucky 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Edmonton, Kentucky's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 25,2016 
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